
Mark Saccoccio  
Town Clerk  

  01525 631920 
      info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 

 

 
The Council Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, Beds, LU7 1HD 

10 February 2023 
 
To:  Members of the Market Sub Committee (Councillors G Perham, D Bowater, 
A Dodwell, F Kharawala, T Morris, R Berry, M Freeman, R Goodchild, P Snelling and 
P Carberry) 
(Copies to all Town Councillors for information) 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Market Sub Committee to be held 
on Thursday, 23 February 2023 commencing at 10.30 am in the The Council 
Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton 
Buzzard, Beds, LU7 1HD.  

 
M Saccoccio  
Town Clerk 

AGENDA 
 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

 Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept of the 
Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of the meeting. 
Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender apologies to the Town 
Clerk. 
 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

 (i) The Localism Act 2011 and the Code of Conduct requires Councillors to 
declare any pecuniary interests, other registrable interests or sensitive interests 
in items on the meeting agenda, which are not already included in the Register 
of Interests. Members may choose to declare interests already listed in the 
Register for clarity and transparency. 
 
(ii) For disclosable pecuniary interests, Members must leave the room and 
not participate in discussion or voting, unless a dispensation has been granted. 

 
 
(iii) For other registrable or non-registrable interests which directly relate to 
the financial interest of a Member, a relative or close associate, councillors may 
speak on the matter only if members of the public may also speak at the 
meeting. Thereafter, Members should leave the room and not participate in 
discussion or voting, unless a dispensation has been granted.  
 

THIS MEETING MAY 
BE RECORDED * 

Public Document Pack

mailto:info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
http://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/


MARKET SUB COMMITTEE Thursday, 23 February 2023 
 

 

 

(iv) The Council/Committee/Sub-Committee is asked to consider approving 
any requests for dispensations to speak/vote on any agenda item in 
accordance with the Dispensations Procedure.  
 
 

3.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC (3 MINUTES PER PERSON; MAXIMUM 15 

MINUTES)  

 

 To receive questions and statements from members of the public in respect of 
any item of business included in the agenda, as provided for in Standing Order 
No.s 3(e)(f)(g) and 3(h). 
 

4.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 4) 

 

 (a) To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of the Market Sub- 
     Committee meeting held on 10 November 2022 (attached).  
 
(b) To receive information updates on matters arising from the previous 
meeting (if appropriate).  
 

5.   MARKET GENERAL UPDATE (Pages 5 - 14) 

 

 To receive a report and consider the recommendations therein (attached) 
 

6.   BUDGET REPORT (Pages 15 - 18) 

 

 To receive a report detailing end of financial year 2022/23 income and 
expenditure and consider the recommendations therein (attached) 
 

7.   ADVERSE WEATHER POLICY UPDATE (Pages 19 - 24) 

 

 To receive an update report and consider the recommendations therein 
(attached). 
 

* Phones and other equipment may be used to film, audio record, tweet or blog from this meeting by an individual Council member, 
officer or member of the public.  No part of the meeting room is exempt from public filming unless the meeting resolves to go into 
exempt session.  The use of images or recordings arising from this is not within the Council’s control. 



Page 39 

LEIGHTON–LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES OF MARKET SUB COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY, 10 NOVEMBER 2022 AT 10.30 AM 
 

Present:   Councillors G Perham (Chair) 
A Dodwell 
F Kharawala 
T Morris 
R Berry 
M Freeman (Vice-Chair) 
P Carberry 
R Yates (substituting for D Bowater) 

 
Also in attendance: A Harrison, Markets Manager 

M Saccoccio, Town Clerk 
M Jahn, Committee Officer 
B Holltum, Market Support Officer 
Cllr V Harvey 

   
 
Members of the public: 0 
Members of the press 0 

 
88/MK APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Snelling, Goodchild 

and Bowater who was substituted by Councillor Yates and Dave Gibbins 
NMTF Liaison Officer / Market Trader. 
 

89/MK DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 No declarations were made and no dispensations were requested. 
 

90/MK QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC (3 minutes per person; maximum 15 
minutes) 
 

 There were no questions from the public. 
 

91/MK MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

 (a) The Sub-Committee received the draft minutes of the previous meeting, 
held on 19 May 2022 for consideration.  

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Markets Sub-Committee meeting 
held on 19 May 2022 be approved as a correct record and were signed 
accordingly. 
 
(b)   No updates were given but would be covered during the meeting if 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Market Sub Committee Meeting Thursday, 10 November 2022 
 

 

Page 40 

needed. 
 

92/MK MARKET GENERAL UPDATE 
 

 The Sub-Committee received a general market update report and appendix 
for consideration.  These included updates on delivery of activity, pitch 
usage, social media communications, planned visiting markets and general 
updates.  
 
It was confirmed that the Vegan Market would now attend once a year in May 
and the Street Food Heroes had confirmed their attendance on the last 
Sunday of every month from March to September 2023.  
 
It was noted that six young traders progressed to the Regional Finals of the 
Young Traders Competition held in Bury St Edmunds on the 27 July but due 
to other commitments only one could attend the event.  This trader and one 
other then attended the Young Trader Finals held at Stratford Upon Avon at 
the end of August.  Although our entrants did not win they came away with a 
sense of pride and picked up ideas and useful tips to aid their businesses in 
future. 
 
A suggestion was made regarding the Tuesday market, which was the 
quieter of the two days, for choirs from the local schools to be invited to sing 
to encourage parents and friends to attend the market to support the 
children. Also, it was mentioned perhaps a stall could be used as a meeting 
place for community groups or lonely people.  However, it was felt the Chatty 
Café held in the Tactic Centre already provided this and logistically it would 
be difficult to operate on a market stall.   
 
The Adverse Weather Policy was being reviewed to include extreme heat 
options following two days during the summer when this had caused a 
problem to traders with perishable goods. Members also felt that a review of 
the Market Rules and Regulations should be continued and marked as on-
going on the Market Annual Work Plan and also how the market could be 
promoted to new residents in the area, especially with all the new housing on 
the eastern side of the town. 
 
RESOLVED to note the report. 
 

93/MK BUDGET REPORT 
 

 The sub-committee received a budget report which showed the market 
continued to perform this quarter compared to the same period last year.   
 
RESOLVED to note the report. 
 

94/MK 12 MONTH ANNUAL REVIEW 
 

 The sub-committee received and considered a detailed 12-month review 
report showing market data covering footfall, trader recruitment, pitch usage 

Page 2



Market Sub Committee Meeting Thursday, 10 November 2022 
 

 

Page 41 

and product list.  This was the fifth review since the market relaunched in late 
September 2017. 
 
The ETRO was still in place and traders were happy with the layout of the 
market at present with the stalls facing inwards towards the road and no 
access for cars and buses on market days.  A review of this was not 
anticipated until a decision had been finalised regarding the ETRO in the 
High Street. 
 
A public and trader survey had taken place but not many responses received.  
Members thought it may be more beneficial for surveys to take place less 
frequently or when there was a particular issue where the public and traders 
could offer their opinions.  It was also felt that the lack of responses could be 
a positive outcome as no issues highlighted.   
 
It was suggested that visiting other markets and talking to their traders could 
result in a more varied offer of stalls which would enhance the market and 
bring more footfall into the town.  The Market Manager agreed this could be 
looked into. 
 
RESOLVED to note the report. 
 
 

 
The meeting closed at 12.15 pm.  
 
I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A CORRECT AND ACCURATE 
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY, 10 NOVEMBER 2022.  
 
 
 
 
Chair                                23 FEBRUARY 2023   

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



 
 
 
 
 

Market Sub Committee      
 

Date: 23 February 2023 

 

Title: Market General Update  

 
Purpose of the Report: To provide an update on market activity for 2022-23 

Quarter 3. 
 

Contact Officer: Adrian Harrison, Market Manager 
 

 
Corporate Objective/s No 23. To continue to manage, promote and develop the 

street market. 

Implications:  

Financial Within existing budget 

Human Resources  

Operational/Service 
delivery 

Market annual plan, activity plan and general updates   

Procedural/Legal  

Risk/Health and Safety  

Environmental Aims  

 

1 RECOMMENDATION 
 
Should members be minded, the proposal is: 
 

1.1 To note the report. 
 
 
2 DELIVERY OF THEMED, VISITING, SPECIALITY AND OTHER MARKETS 
 
2.1 The table below provides an update on Themed, Visiting, Speciality and Other 
Markets for the whole of 2022/23. 
 

Date   Delivery Status 

16-Apr Easter Activity Delivered 

14 - 28 May Love Your Local Market Fortnight  Delivered 

31st May  10 Year celebration and Young 
Traders Competition 

Delivered 

04-Jun Queens Jubilee Celebrations Delivered 

02-Jul Independents Day 2022 (In 
collaboration with LB First) 

Delivered 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



 
  

09-Aug National Children’s Playday 
Tuesday 

Delivered 

 Oct  Halloween activity Delivered 

 3-Dec Small Business Saturday 2022 Delivered 

Date Visiting Markets 2022/2023 Delivery Status 

24 April, 29 May, 
26 Jun, 31 Jul,  
28 Aug, 25 Sept. 

Street Food Heroes - Sundays 24 April – Delivered 
29 May –  Delivered 
26 June – Delivered  
31 July -   Delivered 
28 Aug  -  Delivered 
25 Sept -  Delivered 

13-Mar Vegan Market - Sunday Delivered 

22-Apr France at Home Market - Friday Delivered 

12-Jun Vegan Market - Sunday Delivered 

18-Sep Vegan Market - Sunday Cancelled 

Date Speciality & Other 2022/2023 Delivery Status 

20-Nov Christmas Charity Market - Sunday Delivered 

26-Nov Christmas Festival Weekend Delivered 

03-Dec Small Business Saturday Delivered 

 
See Appendix B for Themed, Visiting, Speciality and Other Markets 2023-24. 
 
 
2.2 The table below presents the pitch usage figures for Qu.3, 2022/23 
 

 
1  During September there were a few large stalls missing due to holidays 
2 1-day adverse weather followed by 2 Tuesdays of bad weather 
 
2.3 Market trader recruitment updates - the table below presents the traders joined & 
left figures for all quarters in 2022/23.  
 

Trader type Qu. 1 
Joined 

Qu.1 
Left 

Qu.2 
Joined 

Qu.2 
Left 

Qu.3 
Joined 

Qu.3 
Left 

Qu4 
Joined 

Qu 4 
Left 

Permanent 5 -2 0 -1 0 -12   

Casual* 25  8  8    

Farmers 0  0 -1 1    

Craft* 15  6  11    

Charities, Comm 
Groups* 

9  8  61    

Qu. 1 Pitches 
Used 

Qu. 2 Pitches 
Used 

Qu.3 Pitches 
Used 

Qu 4 Pitches 
Used 

Apr-22 465 Jul-22 462 Oct-22 520 Jan-23 - 

May-22 484 Aug-22 422 Nov-22 4472 Feb-23 - 

Jun-22 440 Sept-22 3831 Dec-22 - Mar-23 - 

Total 1,389  1,267     

Page 6



 
  

Start Up 4  1  3    

 
* Due to the nature of theses traders coming and going. Counter is reset in Q1 and 
trader numbers recorded thereafter (25 casuals in Q1 + 8 new ones in Q2 etc. 
Handmade and Craft market runs March to December. 
 
1 10 traders from around the Town joined the market in support of Small Business 
Saturday. 
2 One trader left on maternity leave and has indicated that she will be back when 
appropriate. She continues an online presence. 
 

3 MARKET ANNUAL WORKPLAN 

 
3.1 The Annual Market Workplan for 2022/23 is at Appendix A (attached) and 
remains a working document.   
   

4 DIGITAL PLATFORMS 
 
Quarter 3 saw another steady growth in followers online, most of which are based in 
Leighton Buzzard, but with others in Dunstable, Milton Keynes and Luton. We 
achieved a broader ‘reach’ of posts, which peak when posts are shared in local 
groups or by individuals.  The best performing posts over the last 3 months are the 
Christmas Festival Saturday post, the anniversary of the Charter and one of the old 
photos of the market. These suggest that there is a strong interest in the history of 
the market, alongside the usual ‘what’s on’ content for posts. We would be grateful if 
members are able to share posts on their own profiles to assist this.  
 
 

5 GENERAL UPDATES QUARTER 3, 2022-23 
 
5.1 The annual Charity/Community Market was successful this year with much better 
weather than the previous year. Most traders reported that their takings were very 
good and asked to be included next year. Next years’ date has been set for Sunday 
19 November. 
 
5.2 The Small Business Saturday event was held in early December. This was a 
collaborative event with LB First. Small Business Saturday is a UK campaign to 
support small business, taking place on the first Saturday in December each year. 
The campaign encourages businesses to promote themselves and work with other 
small businesses, and consumers to ‘shop local’ and support small, independent 
businesses in their communities It helps showcase some of the less visible traders in 
the Town and show off what they too can offer. This was held in Market House using 
the market umbrellas. 
 
5.3 The Handmade and Craft speciality market continued up to Christmas and has 
been very busy. The traders have a couple of months off to restock before returning 

Page 7

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Local_purchasing


 
  
in March 2023.There has also been enquiries about joining the market when it 
returns. 
 
5.4 Black History month was supported by several traders who returned throughout 
October to the Charter Market. It is hoped that one of the traders may come back as 
a casual trader in the new year. 
 
5.5 Street Food Heroes (SFH), an independent collective of food vendors that come 
on the last Sunday each month between March and September, have booked on for 
another season in 2023. 
 
5.6 The Young Traders National Competition begins again from the spring and we 
have set a date for the local heat to be Tues 16th May.  We will be promoting this and 
hoping to build on last years success, with more stalls.  The NMTF have suggested 
that the stallholders in each round be treated as ambassadors of the local markets 
they started in.  Officers would like the committee to endorse repayment of 
reasonable travel costs for those stallholders recognised as ambassadors, in order 
to best support the scheme and promote Leighton Buzzard market at a national level 
to other young stallholders.  
 
5.7 France at Home, the travelling French Market have booked again for April 2023. 
 
5.8 Officers met with Cllr Harvey, CBC Highway, CBC Parking Enforcement, Andy 
Humphreys, and Sophia Villiers from the Swan Hotel to try and sort out the overnight 
parking problem in the High Street on market days. 
 
Vehicles have been parking overnight preventing some traders from working or 
having to re-locate. This has been going on for many years. 
 
It was a helpful meeting with many legal points raised regarding ticketing, signage 
and what the hotel can and cannot advise their customers. Highways and 
Enforcement are checking to see how the ETRO (Experimental Traffic Road Order) 
can be changed to help with enforcement and what signage can be implemented.  
 
The Swan Hotel have agreed to add a small note with every key given to customers 
warning about parking in the High Street on market days and to promote parking in 
the Duncombe Street car park which is free from 6pm overnight. The Market 
Manager has printed some A5 signs clearly stating the parking rules that will go into 
every room along with some A4 signs to be placed around the hotel. 
 
To date, we await the outcome from Highways and Parking Enforcement regarding 
signage and ticketing. 
 
5.9 Officers recently attended the one-day NABMA Conference held in Birmingham. 
Notes from the conference are as follows: 
 
  

Page 8



 
  
Appx.  
 
Summary notes from NABMA Conference - Thurs 26th Jan 2023 in Birmingham 

In attendance – Louise Salmon, Adrian Harrison, Bethany Holttum (notes) 
 
Overall summary:  
LB Market is doing well compared to elsewhere, we know that many are losing traders 
where we are gaining them. There is a national change coming for markets and we need to 
be ‘ahead of the game’ in attracting a new breed of traders and consumers in order to 
survive.  Markets could be placed at the centre of a revival of the High Street which is 
needed across the whole of the UK. We need to look at how we can help new and micro-
businesses grow and expand on our existing offer to make the market a destination in its 
broadest sense.  
 
 
Notes from speakers:  
 

1. High Street Task Force – Reactivating the High Street 
Ojay McDonald – CEO of the Association of Town and City Management  
 

 ATCM is not-for-profit, they provide networking and advocacy. 

 The High St is in “permacrisis” – covid/Brexit legacies, working at home, debt 
of households/businesses, spending patterns are changing, as is frequency of 
spend and dwell time.  There are supply chain and labour shortages. 

o Sterling has slumped on the global market, so everything is more 
expensive – links to Ukraine, energy crisis and transportation of goods 

o Consumers have less disposable income, estimated 22/23 will be the 
largest annual fall in history by the ONS and 23/24 being the 2nd 
largest fall.  

o Many businesses expected to fail in Q1 of 2023 

 Markets essential to the rebuild. 
 
 

2. The NABMA National Retail Survey 2022 – Headlines, Discussion and 
Action 
Graham Wilson QC - NABMA  
 

 Main conclusions (compared to 2009) 
o 1000’s of stalls lost over the UK, therefore a realistic reduction in 

trader occupation as fewer stalls to occupy spaces 
o 2009 = approx. 45k traders., 2018 approx. 32k, 2022 - fewer than 30k 
o Only 40% of UK markets are profitable, most (82%) now local 

authority run and subsidised – concerns over sustainability over the 
longer term. 

 

 NABMA are taking 5 Actions from the survey:  
i. Recruit new traders.  
ii. Help markets to achieve profitability.  
iii. Demonstrate the wider value of markets.   
iv. Improve the relationship with traders.  
v. Make the approach to market management more professional.  

 

Page 9



 
  
 
 
 
 

3. The National Young Traders Market 2023 
Joe Harrison – CEO NMTF  
 

 Local involvement needed. 

 How to support young traders markets that won’t work well on regular 
markets?  Encourage them to join us vs private events, how to engage with 
online businesses? 
 
 

4. Markets and Community Wealth Building 
Leeds University  - Dr Taylor  
 

 Traditional retail markets trapped between decline and gentrification – all 
local successes should be celebrated, customer buy-in, connect with 
voluntary sector and business development teams.  

 Include community/social  value, community wealth building and benefit in 
procurement.  
 

 
5. Markets and the Hospitality Sector 

Mark Laurie, Stakeholder Manager, The Nationwide Caterers Association 

 

 Street food revolution –the only growing hospitality area in the UK 

at present.  

 Charge a % of takings and not a pitch fee 

 Promote the experience and not the specific offering  - “curate” 

experience – music/food/community/influencers/dwell places. 

 Make more of our current street food offering on a Tuesday. 

 
6 CONCLUSION 
 
The overall message from the conference is that LB Market is doing well, compared 
to others nationally.  However, we do need to look forward and evolve along with the 
changing face of the High Street.  
 
 
 
 
END. 
 

Page 10



Market Sub Committee                                              23 February 2023                      Appendix A 
       

2022-23 - Market Annual Work Plan - remains ‘active’ and open to changes. 
 
 

 Task Target date Committee  Update Delivery 
status 

1. Covid recovery 
Dependent upon Government Guidelines 
& influence pedestrianisation of High 
Street. 

Ongoing Market Sub CBC decision on 2/02/22 to continue the 
pedestrianisation of the High St on market and 
event days.  
19/05/22- N.B. now only on market days.  

 

Ongoing 

2.  Ten-year anniversary of overseeing 
the market 

June 2022 Market sub To be celebrated at event on 31st May with 
NABMA visitors 

 
Achieved 

 CARRIED FORWARD      

3. Market Rules and Regulations, Trader 
Licence - annual review  
To review and update according to 
industry changes/standards as identified 
and to reflect the updating of Council 
policies and procedures. 

March 2023 Market Sub, 
C&E, 
P&F 

Collating information from across the industry. 
Final draft to go to C&E Committee with  
recommendation for P&F for endorsement – if the 
need for alterations are identified.  

 
 

In 
progress 

 ANNUAL ACTIVITY     

4. Environmental Aims Carbon 
assessment 
2022 

G&E 
P&F 
Market Sub 

Environmental questions are now part of the  
annual review survey.  
Waste management figures annual shared via 
social media platforms.  
A carbon assessment of Town Council operations 
is to be undertaken in 2022 inclusive of the market 
to provide baseline evidence on which to take 
forward the move towards being net carbon neutral 
by 2030 (Ref.156/GE) Council staff to undertake 
carbon literacy training.  

 
Ongoing 

5. Annual monitoring review  
As per relaunch anniversary date.  
 

Autumn 2022 Market Sub, 
 

An annual survey to be undertaken of traders and 
customers 

 
Achieved 

 

P
age 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 12



 Market Sub Committee      23 February 2023                               Appendix B 
 
Themed, Visiting, Speciality and Other Markets 2023-24 

Date Speciality & Other 2023/2024 Delivery Status 

04-Apr Children’s Easter Activity  

06 May Kings Coronation  

12 - 27 May Love Your Local Market 
Fortnight  

 

16 May Young Traders Competition  

01-Jul   TBC Independents Day 2023 (In 
collaboration with LB First) 

 

29-Aug  TBC Aug Back To School Day  

24-Oct Halloween activity  

02-Dec TBC Small Business Saturday 2023  

Date Visiting Markets 2023/2024 Delivery Status 

26 March, 30 April, 
28 May, 25 Jun, 30 
Jul, 27 Aug, 24 Sept. 

Street Food Heroes - Sundays  

21-Apr France at Home Market - Friday  

14-May Vegan Market - Sunday  

Date Speciality & Other 2023/2024 Delivery Status 

19-Nov Christmas Charity Market  

25-Nov Christmas Festival Weekend  

02-Dec TBC Small Business Saturday  

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



 
 
 
 
 

Market Sub Committee      
 

Date: 23 February 2023 

 
Title: Market Budget Report, Quarter 3,  2022/23 

 
Purpose of the Report:  To provide budget information for Quarter 3,  2022/23  

 

Contact Officer:  Adrian Harrison, Market Manager  
 

Corporate Objective/s  No 23. To continue to manage, promote and 
develop the street market. 

Implications:   

Financial Yes Income and expenditure figures for Q2 2022/23 

Human Resources   

Operational/Service 
delivery 

  

Procedural/Legal   

Risk/Health and Safety   

Environmental Aims   

 
 

1 RECOMMENDATION 
 
Should members be minded, the proposal is: 
 

1.1 To note the report. 
 
 

2 BACKGROUND 
 

2.1 The information provides an understanding of quarterly financial details. All 
figures are taken from the Council’s financial management system and rounded up 
to the nearest pound. The figures presented show all income and expenditure 
received and paid during the months presented.  
 
2.2 The quarterly figures provided reflect a two-year financial period, not a calendar 
two-year period. April being month 1 and concluding with March as month 12.   
 
2.3 Expenditure is clarified as all running costs relating to the market, including 
staffing. It was noted by Committee that a more detailed expenditure report is 
produced as part of the system-generated budget monitoring reports and presented 
to the parent committee - Cultural and Economic Services.  

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



 
  
 
2.4  Committee will be aware that since July 2021 all traders pay full rents since 
lockdown restrictions eased and all traders rent subsidies finished. 

 
 

3 FINANCIAL INFORMATION COVERING QUARTER 3, OCTOBER to DECEMBER 
2022/23 
 
3.1 Income, expenditure, and net for October - December 2022/23. 
 

 
 
 
 

Income Summary Oct-21 Oct-22 Nov-21 Nov-22 Dec-21 Dec-22 

Total Income  £      
7,479.00  

 £       
7,865.00  

 £      
7,599.00  

 £      
7,536.00  

 £      
6,371.00  

 £        
7,575.00  

Total 
Expenditure 

-£      
9,965.00  

-£      
9,197.00  

-£      
8,080.00  

-£   
10,300.00  

-£   
10,287.00  

-£     
16,133.00  

Total -£      
2,486.00  

-£      
1,332.00  

-£         
481.00  

-£      
2,764.00  

-£      
3,916.00  

-£       
8,558.00  

 
 
Income 

 

All permanent traders receive four days holiday a year per trading day. Any further 
absence is charged and paid for. 
 
 
 
3.2  Income comparison per market day/type October - December 2022/2023 

 

-£70,000.00

-£60,000.00

-£50,000.00

-£40,000.00

-£30,000.00

-£20,000.00

-£10,000.00

 £-

 £10,000.00

 £20,000.00

Oct-21 Oct-22 Nov-21 Nov-22 Dec-21 Dec-22 Total

Market Income, Expenditure and Net Income for Oct 
2022 - Dec 2022 vs. Oct 2021 - Dec2021

Total Income Total Expenditure Total

Page 16



 
  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
3.3 Total Market Income October - December 2022/2023 
 

Total Market Income Oct-21 Oct-22 Nov-21 Nov-22 Dec-21 Dec-22 

Tuesday  £      
3,702.00  

 £       
2,996.00  

 £      
3,310.00  

 £      
2,635.00  

 £      
2,408.00  

 £        
3,238.00  

Saturday  £      
3,398.00  

 £       
4,586.00  

 £      
3,923.00  

 £      
4,378.00  

 £      
3,007.00  

 £        
3,894.00  

Farmers  £          
144.00  

 £             
18.00  

 £          
144.00  

 £          
108.00  

 £          
144.00  

 £            
108.00  

Speciality (Inc Start-
Up) 

 £                   
-    

 £           
165.00  

 £          
192.00  

 £          
135.00  

 £          
652.00  

 £              
95.00  

Handmade & Craft  £          
220.00  

 £                    
-    

 £                   
-    

 £          
280.00  

 £          
160.00  

 £            
240.00  

Commercial  £                   
-    

 £           
100.00  

 £                   
-    

 £                   
-    

 £                   
-    

 £                     
-    

 £-

 £2,000.00

 £4,000.00

 £6,000.00

 £8,000.00

 £10,000.00

 £12,000.00

 £14,000.00

Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Total

Tuesday & Saturday Charter Market Income for Oct -
Dec 2022

Tuesday Saturday

 £-

 £100.00

 £200.00

 £300.00

 £400.00

 £500.00

 £600.00

Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Total

Other Market Income for Oct - Dec 2022

Farmers Speciality (Inc Start-Up)

Handmade & Craft Commercial

Other

Page 17



 
  

Other  £                   
-    

 £                    
-    

 £                   
-    

 £                   
-    

 £                   
-    

 £                     
-    

Total  £      
7,464.00  

 £       
7,865.00  

 £      
7,569.00  

 £      
7,536.00  

 £      
6,371.00  

 £        
7,575.00  

 

Income 
 
Note: The income for Saturday is now greater than Tuesdays which is the reverse of 
the period during restrictions. More people are back at work which leads to many 
traders being able to work at weekends only. 
 
The Farmers and Producers and Handmade and Craft markets held once a month, 
are back in their usual position trading at full capacity (space wise). 
 
3.4 The table below shows the actual year to date figures against the predicted 
current annual budget for 2022/23 up to December 2022. 

 
                                                                            Actual To Date    Target Budget 
Annual Summary 2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 2022/2023 

Total Income  £      8,128.00   £     67,661.00  £    68,430.00  £    81,250.00  

Total Expenditure -£ 118,046.00  -£  126,480.00  -£ 109,839.00 -£ 138,782.00  

Total -£ 109,918.00  -£    58,819.00  -£   41,409.00 -£   57,532.00  

 
 

4 CONCLUSION 
 
4.1  There was only one day lost to adverse weather and one day lost to a Bank 
Holiday. An increase in salaries for the last 2 months was due to one member of staff 
being on long term sick leave. The increase in Saturday income reflects the ever-
changing pattern of trading with more traders available at weekends while employed 
during the week. 
Taking the above into consideration, the health of the market remains stable. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
END 

 

Page 18



 
 
 
 

Market Sub Committee      
 

Date: 23 February 2023 

 

Title: Adverse weather policy Update 

 

Purpose of the Report: To update the adverse weather policy to include policy 
reference to market operations during periods of extreme heat.  
 
Contact Officer: Adrian Harrison, Market Manager 
  
 

 

Corporate Objective/s No 23. To continue to manage, promote and develop 
the street market. 

Implications:   

Financial No  

Human Resources No  

Operational/Service 
delivery 

Yes  

Procedural/Legal   

Risk/Health and Safety Yes To manage extreme 
temperatures on market days 

Environmental Aims   

 
 

1 RECOMMENDATION 
 
Should members be minded, the recommendation is: 
 
1.1 To carefully consider and thereafter recommend to Policy and Finance 

Committee the proposed inclusion of either policy wording Option 1 or Option 
2 within the town council’s adverse weather policy.  

 
 

2 BACKGROUND 
 

2.1 News reports are constantly informing us all about climate change and how it 
affects our daily lives and how it will affect us all in the future.  

 
2.2     The Council responded to the increase in the high winds that now affect the 
market year on year by producing the Adverse Weather Policy with parameters set 
by the Met Offices’ own clear measurement system.  
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



 
  
2.3     The Council has a duty of care to traders and its’ staff in such conditions. With 
the increase in temperatures the heat could affect traders, Council employees 
(market manager, market porter, stall erectors) and the public’s health and wellbeing. 
It can also affect some traders product lines too, especially those selling food. By 
offering options to trade in these conditions, it gives the traders an informed choice 
as to whether they should trade or not. 
 
2.4     With the severity of the hot temperatures endured (twice in 2022), officers 
have looked at the adverse weather policy with the intention of updating it to include 
extremely hot weather. Again, like the high winds, the Met Office has a clear and 
informative way in measuring the severity.  
 

3 OPTIONS 
 

3.1 Like the Met Offices scale for wind measurement, heat measurement is very 
similar with a traffic light system in place with red being the most severe of conditions. 
Amber being the next level down and not so severe but potentially dangerous 
 

 Red warning. With this type of warning it is usual for the Met Office to tell 
people to stay indoors and keep out of the sun/heat all day. This warning was 
used for heat by the Met Office for the first time in July 2022 when record 
temperatures of over 40⁰C were reached. 
 

 Amber Warning. This type of warning, the Met Office advise that you do not 
spend too long outside and to keep in the shade where possible. This warning 
was used for the August 2022 heatwave which saw highs of 36⁰C. 

 
4 OPTION  1 
 
4.1      Red warning – close the market to all traders. Any traders that attend will not 
be recognised nor will their insurance be valid thus trading illegally. No gazebos 
erected or any Council equipment supplied. No charge to traders nor loss of holiday 
rights. 
 
4.2      Amber warning – give the traders the option to trade if they so wish. Any 
trader not wanting to trade will not be charged and will not lose holiday rights. Those 
traders attending will be charged at normal rates. Those traders NOT attending must 
inform the market manager or representative by 12 noon the day before otherwise 
they will be charged if they do not show.  The market manager or representative to 
determine the time of early closure of the market at his/her discretion on the day if 
needed.  
 
5 OPTION 2 
 
5.1      Red warning – give the traders the option to trade if they so wish. Any trader 
not wanting to trade will not be charged and will not lose holiday rights. Those 
traders attending will be charged at normal rates.  Those traders NOT attending 
must inform the market manager or representative by 12noon the day before 

Page 20



 
  
otherwise they will be charged if they do not show. The market manager or 
representative to determine the time of closure of the market at his/her discretion on 
the day. 
 
5.2      Amber warning – all traders to trade. The market manager or Council 
representative to finish the market early at their discretion (1pm/2pm) full rents to be 
paid.  
 
6  PREFFERED OPTION 
 
6.1       Officers believe that Option 1 is the better option. This gives a clear definition 
of the severity of weather forecast. This is similar to the current policy with wind. Red 
warning, too dangerous, no market etc. This also shows consistency in approach to 
such warnings be it wind or heat. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
Climate change is with us all and the extremes of weather are now more apparent as 
each year goes by. As a Council we have to be aware and act accordingly to 
safeguard those who may be affected by such extremes of weather. 
       
  

Page 21



 
  
A guide to the National Severe Weather Warning Service 

As the UK's official weather service, the Met Office is responsible for issuing weather warnings, 

which warn of impacts caused by severe weather. Our warnings are designed to let people, businesses, 

emergency responders and governments know what weather is in store and what the impacts of that 

weather may be. The Met Office operates 24 hours a day, 365 days a year so warnings can be issued 

at any time, day or night. 

We provide warnings up to seven days ahead for rain, thunderstorms, wind, snow, lightning, ice, 

extreme heat and fog. 

Each warning will contain the following sections: 

 Headline – a short weather headline, which states what weather type, is forecast. 

 What to expect – details on the types of impact forecast and an indication of how likely those 

impacts are 

 What should I do – this section links to advice and guidance from our partners on how to stay 

safe in severe weather 

 Further details – additional information on the forecast weather. 

When applicable, warnings will include information on why a warning has been updated. 

What do the colours mean? 

The Met Office issues weather warnings, through the National Severe Weather Warning Service, 

when severe weather has the potential to bring impacts to the UK. These warnings are given a colour 

(yellow, amber or red) depending on a combination of both the impact the weather may have and the 

likelihood of those impacts occurring. 

Yellow and Amber warnings represent a range of impact levels and likelihoods. This means it is 

important to read each warning to know what level of impact you can expect for your chosen warning 

area – and how likely those impacts are to occur. 

These impacts can include damage to property, travel delays and cancellations, loss of water supplies, 

power cuts and, in the most severe cases, bring a danger to life. 

We show this combination of impact and likelihood in a matrix, which can be seen in the Further 

Details section of our warnings. To understand how likely we think the forecast impacts are, always 

check the matrix to see which box has been ticked. 

Page 22



 
  

 

Yellow Warning: Yellow warnings can be issued for a range of weather situations. Many are issued 

when it is likely that the weather will cause some low level impacts, including some disruption to 

travel in a few places. Many people may be able to continue with their daily routine, but there will be 

some that will be directly impacted and so it is important to assess if you could be affected. Other 

yellow warnings are issued when the weather could bring much more severe impacts to the majority 

of people but the certainty of those impacts occurring is much lower. It is important to read the 

content of yellow warnings to determine which weather situation is being covered by the yellow 

warning. 

Amber Warning: There is an increased likelihood of impacts from severe weather, which could 

potentially disrupt your plans. This means there is the possibility of travel delays, road and rail 

closures, power cuts and the potential risk to life and property. You should think about changing your 

plans and taking action to protect yourself and your property. You may want to consider the impact of 

the weather on your family and your community and whether there is anything you need to do ahead 

of the severe weather to minimise the impact. 

Red Warning: Dangerous weather is expected and, if you haven’t already done so, you should take 

action now to keep yourself and others safe from the impact of the severe weather. It is very likely 

that there will be a risk to life, with substantial disruption to travel, energy supplies and possibly 

widespread damage to property and infrastructure. You should avoid travelling, where possible, and 

follow the advice of the emergency services and local authorities. 

 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	5 MARKET GENERAL UPDATE
	Appendix A_Market Annual Work Plan 2022-23
	Appendix B Themed, Visiting, Speciality and Other Markets  2023-24

	6 BUDGET REPORT
	7 ADVERSE WEATHER POLICY UPDATE

